

1 **Board of Forestry and Fire Protection**

2 **“State Forest Regulations”**

3 **Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations (14 CCR),**

4 **Division 1.5, Chapter 9,**

5 **Subchapter 1, Articles 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5;**

6 **Subchapter 4.**

7 **ARTICLE 1**

8 **§1400.5. Definitions.**

9 The following definitions are applicable throughout Chapter 9 unless the context clearly
10 requires otherwise.

11 (a) “Affiliate” means the purchaser's subsidiary, parent company, joint venture
12 partner, entity, being a portion of the conglomerate of which the purchaser is a
13 unit, or other entity under the purchaser's indirect control.

14 (b) “Board” means the California State Board of Forestry and Fire Protection.

15 (c) “Campfire” means a fire used by one or more persons while eCamping,
16 picnicking, recreating or working on sState fForest land, to provide any one or
17 combination of the following: heat for cooking, heat for personal warmth, light
18 and for ceremonial or aesthetic purposes. “Campfire” includes open fires and
19 those fires contained within fireplaces and enclosed stoves with flues or
20 chimneys, stoves using pressurized liquid or gaseous fluids, portable barbecue
21 pits and braziers or space heating devices which are used outside any structure,
22 trailer house or living accommodations mounted on a motor vehicle.

23 (d) “Camping” or “eCamp” means erecting a tent or shelter or arranging bedding
24 or both, for the purpose of, or in such a way as will permit, remaining overnight;
25 or occupying an established-campsite Designated Camping Area with a camper

1 vehicle or camping equipment for the purpose of reserving the use of such
2 campsiteDesignated Camping Areas. The term also includes parking a camper
3 vehicle or trailer and spending the night within, or within close proximity of said
4 camper vehicle or trailer.

5 (e) "Designated eCamping aArea" means:

6 (1) a location designated by the sState fForest mManager as a-camping
7 areaan area where Camping is allowable and marked by authorized signs
8 to that effect. Unless otherwise delineated by fences or signs, a
9 "dDesignated eCamping aArea" shall include only the area developed for
10 eCamping and provided with fireplaces or tables or both, and shall not
11 include any adjacent areas not so developed for eCamping. ; or

12 (2) An undeveloped area that is being utilized for Camping under the
13 terms and conditions specified by a valid state forest campfire and
14 special use permit.

15 (f) "Department" means the California Department of Forestry and Fire
16 Protection or CAL FIRE.

17 (g) "Director" means the Director of the Department of Forestry and Fire
18 Protection or CAL FIRE.

19 (h) "Person" means and includes natural persons, firms, copartnerships,
20 corporations, clubs, and all associations or combinations of persons whenever
21 acting for themselves, by agent, servant, or employee.

22 (i) "Purchaser" means that pPerson, company or entity who was the successful
23 bidder, buyer, transferee or successor of sState tTimber.

24 (j) "State fForest" or "fForest" means any portion of the state forest system
25 administered by the Director.

1 (k) "State ~~f~~Forest ~~l~~icensee" means any ~~p~~Person authorized by a state forest
2 manager or the superiors thereof, to engage in any of the following activities
3 within a state forest:

4 (1) operate concessions serving the public,

5 (2) plant, protect, harvest or remove timber, other forest products or
6 minerals,

7 (3) conduct experiments or otherwise engage in research or educational
8 activity,

9 (4) or any other activity not listed above with written permission of the
10 Director.

11 (l) "State ~~f~~Forest ~~m~~anager" means the ~~s~~State ~~f~~Forest ~~e~~Officer appointed by the
12 Director to supervise the management and administration of a ~~s~~State ~~f~~Forest or
13 in the ~~s~~State ~~f~~Forest ~~m~~anager's absence, the person designated by a ~~s~~State
14 ~~f~~Forest ~~m~~anager to act during his or her absence.

15 (m) "State ~~f~~Forest ~~e~~Officer" means employees of the Department ~~of Forestry~~ as
16 designated by the Director, or such other persons as may be designated by the
17 Director.

18 (n) "State ~~t~~imber" means any or all trees, logs or wood products from state-
19 owned forests, which have not received primary manufacture to a size sawn on
20 4 sides to dimensions of 4 inches by 12 inches (10.2 cm by 30.5 cm), or less.

21 (o) "Substitution" means the replacing of ~~s~~State ~~t~~imber for unprocessed timber
22 which, directly or indirectly, was exported to a foreign country from private lands
23 owned or controlled by the ~~p~~urchaser within California in an area 200 miles
24 (321.8 km) or less from the nearest boundary line of the ~~s~~State ~~t~~imber sale
25 area from which ~~s~~State ~~t~~imber was removed. The distance will be determined

1 via the shortest route of either public roads, railroads, or water route customarily
2 used to transport forest products.

3
4 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
5 4656.1, Public Resources Code.

6
7 **ARTICLE 2. Camping Area Use**

8 **§ 1401. Camping Area.**

9 Camping in ~~a s~~State ~~f~~Forests is restricted to ~~d~~Designated ~~e~~Camping ~~a~~Areas. No
10 ~~p~~Person shall camp outside of a ~~d~~Designated ~~e~~Camping ~~a~~Area unless that ~~p~~Person ~~or~~
11 ~~someone in attendance~~ has in their possession a valid state forest campfire and
12 special use permit. Failure to comply with the terms and conditions set forth on said
13 permit shall render it invalid for purposes of this Section.

14
15 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
16 4656.1, Public Resources Code.

17
18 **§ 1401.1. Fees and Registration.**

19 (a) The following schedule of fees are required for use of Designated Camping Areas
20 as defined by 14 CCR § 1400.5 (e)(1) within Jackson Demonstration State Forest,
21 Boggs Mountain Demonstration State Forest. Such applicable fees shall be due to the
22 Department and payable upon arrival.

23 (1.) Designated Camping Area (including one vehicle) \$15 per day

24 (2.) One additional vehicle in a Designated Camping Area (limit one) \$5 per day

1 (b) The following schedule of fees are applicable for uses within Mountain Home
2 Demonstration State Forest. Fees for use of Designated Camping Areas shall be due
3 to the Department and payable upon arrival, and fees for use of predesignated group
4 campgrounds shall be paid in advance.

5 (1.) Designated Camping Area as defined by 14 CCR § 1400.5 (e)(1) (including
6 one vehicle)..... \$15 per day

7 (2.) One additional vehicle in a Designated Camping Area as defined by 14 CCR
8 § 1400.5 (e)(1) (limit one)..... \$5 per day

9 (3.) Use of predesignated group campground..... \$50 per day

10 (c) All fees may be subject to periodic review and revision by the Board in conformance
11 with Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 11340) of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of
12 the Government Code.

13 (d) The Director may collect registration information from any Person using a
14 Designated Camping Area. Registration information may include, but is not limited to,
15 length of stay, Designated Camping Area number or site identifier, date of arrival,
16 name, city of primary residence, county of primary residence, and vehicle and trailer
17 information (including make, model, year of manufacture, and license plate number).

18
19 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1 Public Resources Code. Reference: Section 4652
20 and 4656.1 Public Resources Code.

21
22 **§ 1401.2 Vacating.**

23 Occupants shall vacate the Designated Camping Area or predesignated group
24 camping area by removing their person, vehicles and property therefrom prior to 2:00
25 PM if applicable use fee has not been paid or if time limit for occupancy has expired.

1
2 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1 Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
3 4656.1 and 4652 Public Resources Code.

4
5 **§1402. Campfire Permits.**

6 (a) No ~~p~~P~~erson~~ shall prepare, ignite, maintain or use a ~~e~~C~~ampfire~~ in any place
7 other than a ~~e~~D~~esignated~~ ~~e~~C~~amping~~ ~~a~~A~~rea~~ unless that ~~p~~P~~erson~~ ~~or someone in~~
8 ~~attendance~~ has in their possession a valid state forest campfire and special use
9 permit. Failure to comply with the terms and conditions set forth on said permit
10 shall render it invalid for purposes of this Section.

11 (b) No ~~p~~P~~erson~~ shall prepare or ignite a ~~e~~C~~ampfire~~ which is or will be
12 unreasonably large and/or dangerous to the surrounding land, or maintain such
13 a fire after having been ordered by a ~~s~~S~~tate~~ ~~f~~F~~orest~~ ~~e~~O~~fficer~~ to reduce or
14 extinguish it.

15 (c) No person shall leave a ~~e~~C~~ampfire~~ ignited, maintained or used by that
16 ~~p~~P~~erson~~ unattended.

17
18 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
19 4656.1, Public Resources Code.

20
21 **§1403. Occupancy Time Limits.**

22 No ~~p~~P~~erson~~ shall ~~e~~C~~amp~~ within any one ~~s~~S~~tate~~ ~~f~~F~~orest~~ more than 14 days in any
23 single visitation. ~~Consistent with Section 4455 of Title 14, California Code of~~
24 ~~Regulation, General~~ Occupancy by the same ~~p~~P~~ersons~~, equipment, or vehicles of any
25 ~~camping facility~~Designated Camping Area is limited to a total of 30 days in any

1 calendar year in that State Forest. Exceptions may be granted by the sState fForest
2 manager to a persons engaged in official state business.

3
4 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
5 4643, 4645, 4646 and 4656.2, Public Resources Code.

6
7 **§ 1404. Reservations.**

8 Individual campsitesDesignated Camping Areas may not be reserved, unless
9 authorized by the Director for use of predesignated group campgrounds. The term
10 “reserved” includes, but is not limited to, calling or writing in advance to obtain a
11 campsitesDesignated Camping Area, a person occupying one or more
12 campsitesDesignated Camping Areas temporarily until another party arrives, placing
13 camping equipment in a campsiteDesignated Camping Area prior to actual occupancy
14 by another party, or other means of obtaining a campsiteDesignated Camping Area for
15 a person or persons not actually present in the sState fForest.

16
17 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
18 4656.1, Public Resources Code.

19
20 **§ 1405. Conduct.**

21 No person shall use threatening, abusive, boisterous, insulting or indecent language
22 or make any indecent gesture in a sState fForest at such times and in such locations
23 as to disturb other persons; nor shall any person conduct or participate in a disorderly
24 assemblage. Clothing sufficient to conform to common standards of decency shall be
25 worn at all times when the wearer is subject to public view.

1
2 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
3 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

4
5 **§ 1406. Assembly.**

6 No pPerson shall conduct a public assembly or demonstration except on permission of
7 the sState fForest manager upon finding that the time, place and manner of such
8 activity would not substantially interfere with the use of the sState fForest by the
9 general public in the applicable area.

10
11 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
12 4656.1 and 4656.2, Public Resources Code.

13
14 **§ 1410. Nuisance.**

15 No pPerson shall erect any structure on or allow a campsiteDesignated Camping Area
16 occupied by that pPerson to become littered with refuse.

17
18 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
19 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

20
21 **ARTICLE 3. General Restrictions**

22 **§ 1411. Equipment.**

23 No pPerson shall occupy a siteDesignated Camping Area with eCamping equipment or
24 vehicles prohibited by the sState fForest manager.

1 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
2 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

3
4 **§ 1412. Noise.**

5 No ~~p~~P~~e~~erson shall create noise which disturbs others in sleeping quarters or in
6 campgrounds within a ~~s~~S~~t~~ate ~~f~~F~~e~~orest between the hours of 11 p.m. and 6 a.m. daily.

7 No ~~p~~P~~e~~erson shall, at any time, use electronic equipment (other than that used in forest
8 operations), including, but not limited to, electrical speakers, radios, ~~phonographs~~, or
9 televisions which produces a sound that can be heard at more than 100 feet from the
10 source.

11
12 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
13 4656.1 and 4656.2, Public Resources Code.

14
15 **§ 1413. Weapons.**

16 (a) No ~~p~~P~~e~~erson shall discharge any firearm, air or gas weapon, or bow and arrow in the
17 vicinity of ~~campsite~~ Designated Camping Area, residence sites, recreation grounds
18 and areas, and over lakes or other bodies of water adjacent to or within such areas,
19 whereby any ~~p~~P~~e~~erson is exposed to injury as a result of such discharge.

20 (b) Without limiting the foregoing, no ~~p~~P~~e~~erson shall discharge any of the above named
21 weapons or any other weapon while within 150 yards (137.20 m) of any ~~d~~D~~e~~signated
22 ~~e~~C~~a~~mping ~~a~~A~~r~~ea.

23
24 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
25 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

1
2 **§ 1414. Soliciting.**

3 No pPerson shall sell or offer for sale any goods or services within a sState fForest
4 unless licensed by the sState fForest mManager.

5
6 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
7 4656.1 and 4656.2, Public Resources Code.

8
9 **§ 1415. Firewood.**

10 Campers, picnickers and other recreational users may gather dead wood lying on the
11 ground for use within the sState fForest. No pPerson shall remove firewood or other
12 forest products from any sState fForest without the written consent of the sState
13 fForest mManager.

14
15 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
16 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

17
18 **§ 1416. Defacing Plants.**

19 (a) No pPerson shall cut or deface live trees, or remove shrubs, plants or portions
20 thereof, or destroy, deface or remove forest products of any description.

21 (b) Annual fruits of native plants such as gooseberries, elderberries and blackberries
22 may be picked and empty conifer cones may be taken for non-commercial use.

23 (c) This sSection shall not apply to sState fForest licensees when acting within the
24 scope of their authorization.

1 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
2 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

3
4 **§ 1417. Geological Features.**

5 No person shall destroy, disturb, mutilate or remove earth, sand, gravel, oil, minerals,
6 rocks or features of caves. This Section shall not apply to sState forest licensees
7 when acting within the scope of their authorization

8
9 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
10 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

11
12 **§ 1418. Horticulture.**

13 In order to control soil erosion, conserve water and preserve the natural condition of
14 sState forests, no person shall plant, tend or harvest within a sState forest any
15 herbs, flowers, vegetables, or fruits except as permitted by Section 1416(b). This
16 sSection shall not apply to sState forest licensees when acting within the scope of
17 their authorization.

18
19 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
20 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

21
22 **§ 1419. Improvements.**

23 No person shall mutilate, deface, damage or remove any table, bench, building, sign,
24 marker, monument, fence, barrier, fountain, faucet, gate, lock, water storage tank or
25 other structure, facility, equipment or property within a sState forest.

1
2 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
3 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

4
5 **§ 1420. Unauthorized Signs.**

6 No person shall cut, carve, paint, mark, post or otherwise affix in a state forest any
7 bill, advertisement or inscription on any tree, natural geologic formation, fence, wall,
8 building, monument or other property whether improved or unimproved. This section
9 shall not apply to state forest licensees when acting within the scope of their
10 authorization.

11
12 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
13 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

14
15 **§ 1421. Rubbish.**

16 (a) No person shall leave, deposit, drop or scatter bottles, broken glass, ashes, waste
17 paper, cans or other rubbish in a state forest except in a receptacle designated for
18 that purpose.

19 (b) Without limiting the foregoing, no person shall vacate a camp-siteDesignated
20 Camping Area without removing all of the above mentioned refuse thereon and
21 depositing it in a receptacle designated for that purpose.

22
23 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
24 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

1 **§ 1422. Polluting Waters.**

2 No ~~p~~P~~e~~erson shall deposit, permit to pass into, or willingly allow any substance in any
3 spring, stream, lake or other waters within a ~~s~~S~~t~~ate ~~f~~F~~o~~rest which will tend to cause
4 said waters to become unfit for human consumption, deleterious to fish and plant life,
5 or which will destroy the aesthetic qualities of the waters. This ~~s~~S~~e~~ction includes, but is
6 not limited to, the washing of clothing or other materials, and the disposal of body or
7 other wastes.

8
9 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
10 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

11
12 **§ 1423. Animal Waste.**

13 Any ~~p~~P~~e~~ersons keeping dogs, cats or other animals within ~~d~~D~~e~~signed ~~e~~C~~a~~mping
14 ~~a~~A~~r~~ea~~s~~ is~~are~~ responsible for removing and burying any and all droppings of said
15 animal, and failure to do so within a reasonable time, or upon order of a ~~s~~S~~t~~ate ~~f~~F~~o~~rest
16 officer, shall constitute a violation of this Section.

17
18 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
19 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

20
21 **§ 1424. Pets.**

22 (a) No ~~p~~P~~e~~erson shall bring a dog, cat or other animal into a ~~d~~D~~e~~signed ~~e~~C~~a~~mping
23 ~~a~~A~~r~~ea unless it is confined, or in a vehicle, or upon a leash not longer than 6 feet (1.83
24 m), or otherwise under physical restrictive control at all times.

1 (b) No pPerson shall keep within a sState fForest a dog or other animal which is noisy,
2 vicious, dangerous or disturbing to any other pPersons after having been ordered by a
3 sState fForest eOfficer to remove said animal from the sState fForest.
4

5 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
6 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.
7

8 **§ 1425. Horses.**

9 (a) No pPerson shall bring saddle, pack or draft animals into a dDesignated eCamping
10 aArea unless it has been developed to accommodate them and is posted accordingly.

11 (b) No horse or other animal shall be hitched to any tree, shrub or structure in such a
12 way that it may cause damage thereto.

13 (c) Any pPersons bringing animals into a sState fForest are responsible for providing
14 them with feed, and no pPerson shall allow any saddle, pack or draft animal to graze
15 on any portion of the sState fForest not specifically designated by the sState fForest
16 manager as suitable for grazing purposes.
17

18 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
19 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.
20

21 **§ 1426. Smoking.**

22 Smoking on sState fForest land covered with flammable vegetation or ground litter
23 while traveling on foot, cycle or domestic animal is prohibited between April 1 and
24 December 1 of any year, and in areas posted against smoking. Smoking is permitted in
25 the following locations: Within improved campgroundDesignated Camping Areas,

1 inside vehicles on improved roads, in places of habitation, and while stopped in an
2 area of at least 3 feet (0.91 m) in diameter cleared of flammable vegetation and ground
3 litter, provided however when smoking within a 3 foot (0.91 m) clearing that all glowing
4 substances are extinguished and discarded within the cleared area.

5
6 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
7 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

8
9 **§ 1427. Archeological Features.**

10 No person shall collect or remove any object or thing of archeological or historical
11 interest or value, nor shall any person injure, disfigure, deface or destroy the physical
12 site, location or context in which the object or thing of archeological or historical interest
13 or value is found.

14
15 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
16 4656.1, 4656.2 and 4656.3, Public Resources Code.

17
18 **ARTICLE 4. Vehicles**

19 **§ 1430. Parking Time Limits.**

20 The sState forest manager may by order establish limits of time for the parking,
21 storage, or leaving of vehicles, including trailers, in a sState forest and in units or
22 portions thereof. No person shall so park, store or leave a vehicle or trailer in
23 contravention of such orders when such time limits have been posted in the area
24 affected. Nothing herein shall be construed in derogation of other state forest
25 regulations.

1
2 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
3 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

4
5 **§ 1431. Cross-Country Travel Prohibited.**

6 Motor vehicles shall be operated only on roads and in parking areas constructed for
7 motor vehicle use. Trail bikes, motorcycles, jeeps, pickups and other passenger
8 carrying motor vehicles shall not be operated on any road or trail posted as closed to
9 the public or to such use.

10
11 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
12 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

13
14 **§ 1433. Vehicles in Camping Areas.**

15 No person shall drive any motorbike, motorcycle or other motor vehicle on any roads
16 within designated camping areas for any purpose other than access to, or egress from
17 the area.

18
19 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
20 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

21
22 **ARTICLE 5. Restricted Use Areas**

23 **§ 1435. Areas Closed to Hunting, Trapping, and the Use of Firearms.**

24 The following areas are closed to hunting, trapping, and the use of firearms:

- 25 (a) Area in Tulare County.

1 The area approximately 440 acres (178.068 ha), more or less, located in Tulare
2 County and described as follows: lying north, south, east and west of Balch Park
3 being those parts of Sec. 36, T19S, R 30E., Sec. 31, T19S, R 31E, Sec. 6T 20S,
4 R 31E, and Sec. 1 and 2, T20S, R30E, that are bounded as follows: from the
5 intersection of the north line of said Sec. 1 with the Balch Park road northerly
6 along this road to its junction with the Lace Meadow road; thence easterly along
7 said Lace Meadow road to its intersection with the north line of the SE 1/4 of
8 Sec. 36, T19S, R30E; thence east along said line to the Summit Road; thence
9 southerly along the Summit road to its junction with the Balch Park road; thence
10 southwesterly along the Balch Park road to its junction with the Bear Creek
11 road; thence southwesterly along the Bear Creek road to its intersection with the
12 south line of Sec. 2; thence along the south and west lines of the SE 1/4 of Sec.
13 2 to the old Coburn Mill road; thence along the Coburn Mill road to its
14 intersection with the north line of the SE 1/4 of Sec. 2; thence east along the
15 north line of the SE 1/4 of Sec. 2 to the quarter corner between Sec. 1 and 2;
16 thence along the wst and north lines of the SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of Sec. 1 to the
17 SW corner of the Balch Park property; and thence easterly and northeasterly,
18 thence easterly, thence northerly, thence westerly, thence southerly, and finally
19 westerly along the boundaries between Balch Park and the Mountain Home
20 Demonstration State Forest to the point of beginning. All townships are
21 described from the MDB&M.

22 (b) Area in Mendocino County.

23 The areas located in Mendocino County and described as follows:

- 24 (1) Mendocino Woodlands area, approximately 3,000 acres (1214.100
25 ha), more or less. That portion of the Mendocino Woodlands area lying

1 south and east of the Little Lake Mendocino (city) road, and south of
2 Jackson Demonstration State Forest road 740, being all of Sec. 13 and
3 portions of Secs. 1, 11, 12, 14, 15, 22, 23, and 24 of T17N, R17W, and
4 portions of Secs. 7, 18, 19 and 30 of T17N, R16W, all MDB&M.

5 (2) Parlin Fork Conservation Camp area, approximately 1,500 acres
6 (607.500 ha), more or less. The E 1/2 of Sec. 32, T18N, R16W, MDB&M.
7 All of Sec. 33, T18N, R16W, MDB&M. That portion of Sec. 4, T17N,
8 R16W, MDB&M, lying north of state highway 20.

9 (3) Chamberlain Creek Conservation Camp area, approximately 1,020
10 acres (412.794 ha), more or less. All of Sec. 5, T17N, R15W, MDB&M; N
11 1/2 of Sec. 8, T17N, R15W, MDB&M; N 1/2 of Sec. 9, T17N, R15W,
12 MDB&M.

13
14 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
15 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

16
17 **§ 1436. Areas Closed to Hunting and the Use of Firearms.**

18 The following area is closed to hunting and the use of firearms:

19 (a) Area in Shasta County.

20 The area of approximately 320 acres (129.504 ha), being a portion of the Latour
21 Demonstration State Forest immediately surrounding the Latour Demonstration
22 State Forest Headquarters and Forest Fire Station. Said lands being located in
23 Shasta County and being described as follows: lying north and east of McMullen
24 Mountain being the SE 1/4 of Sec. 1 and the NE 1/4 of Sec. 12, T32-N, R2-E,
25 MDB&M.

1
2 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
3 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

4
5 **§ 1438. Temporary Restricted Use.**

6 To insure the safety and health of any pPersons, to avoid interference in development,
7 construction, research and timber management, or to provide for the security,
8 safeguarding and preservation of property within a sState fForest and portions thereof,
9 a sState fForest mManager or the superiors thereof may order an area closed to a
10 particular activity for a period of time not to exceed 1 year.

11 (a) Notices prescribing the prohibited activity shall be posted in such locations
12 as will reasonably bring them to the attention of the public.

13 (b) No pPerson shall, while in the restricted area, engage in the activity so
14 prohibited.

15
16 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
17 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

18
19 **§ 1439. Temporary Prohibited Area.**

20 To insure the safety and health of pPersons, to avoid interference in development,
21 construction, research and timber management, or to provide for the security,
22 safeguarding and preservation of property within a sState fForest and pPortions
23 thereof, a sState fForest mManager or the superiors thereof may order any portions of
24 a sState fForest closed to public use or entry for a period of time not to exceed 1 year.

1 (a) A copy of the order shall be posted at the state forest headquarters and may
2 specify such reasonable classes of ~~p~~Persons who may enter the closed area in
3 the conduct of such proper activities or official duties as the State ~~f~~Forest
4 ~~m~~Manager or the superiors thereof may prescribe.

5 (b) Notices designating the area closed to entry shall be posted in such
6 locations as will reasonably bring them to the attention of the public. Such notice
7 may specify the period or periods of closure .

8 (c) During the period when an area is closed to public entry, only ~~p~~Persons
9 specifically authorized by the order of closure may enter or remain within the
10 area so closed.

11 This section shall not be construed in derogation of any other state forest regulation.

12
13 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section
14 4656.1 and 4656.2 Public Resources Code.

17 **SUBCHAPTER 4. Timber Sales**

18 **§ 1510. Harvesting and Management.**

19 The harvesting of forest products from ~~s~~State ~~f~~Forests and management of ~~s~~State
20 ~~f~~Forests shall follow management plans developed for each forest by the Director, and
21 approved by the Board.

22
23 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
24 4645, 4651 and 4656.1, Public Resources Code.

1 **§ 1511. Timber Sales.**

2 When selling State ~~†~~Timber from ~~s~~State ~~f~~Forests as authorized by PRC 4650-4651, the
3 Director shall comply with the requirements of the Department of General Services and
4 Department of Finance pertaining to the sale of state property. Such State ~~†~~Timber
5 sales shall be conducted and administered by the Director following procedures
6 promulgated in the State Administrative Manual (SAM) for contracting and sale of state
7 property.

8
9 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
10 4651 and 4656.1, Public Resources Code.

11
12 **§ 1515. Bids Solicitation.**

13 The Director, when selling or soliciting bids for sale of State ~~†~~Timber from ~~s~~State
14 ~~f~~Forests, shall condition the sale upon agreement of the purchaser that said State
15 ~~†~~Timber will not be ~~s~~Substituted for timber exported from private lands under control of
16 the bidder, or ~~a~~Affiliate.

17
18 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
19 4645, 4651 and 4656.1, Public Resources Code.

20
21 **§ 1516. Non-Substitution Agreement.**

22 Every ~~p~~Purchaser of State ~~†~~Timber from ~~s~~State ~~f~~Forests shall execute an agreement
23 with the Director that said State ~~†~~Timber will not be ~~s~~Substituted for timber exported
24 from the ~~p~~Purchaser's private lands.

1 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
2 4645, 4651 and 4656.1, Public Resources Code.

3
4 **§ 1517. Notice of Removal.**

5 The pPurchaser, before removal of State tTimber from sState fForests, shall give
6 written notice to the Director of any or all locations where said State tTimber will be
7 processed. Said notice shall be required for all of said State tTimber until such time as
8 the State tTimber has been sawn to dimensions of 4 inches by 12 inches (10.2 cm by
9 30.5 cm) or less.

10
11 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
12 4645, 4651 and 4656.1, Public Resources Code.

13
14 **§ 1518. Transfer Requirement.**

15 Upon transfer of sState tTimber not receiving primary manufacture, the pPurchaser
16 shall require the transferee to agree to the same sSubstitution restrictions as are
17 imposed on pPurchaser. Within 5 days of said transfer, a copy of the agreement,
18 together with location of intended processing of said State tTimber, shall be delivered
19 by pPurchaser to the Director.

20
21 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
22 4645, 4651 and 4656.1, Public Resources Code.

23
24 **§ 1519. Preservation of Records.**

1 Purchaser shall preserve for a period of 3 years, after conclusion of removal of State
2 Timber from the State Forest, all records pertaining to the use and disposition of the
3 State Timber and, upon request of the Director, make said records available for
4 inspection by the Director.

5
6 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
7 4645, 4651 and 4656.1, Public Resources Code.

8
9 **§ 1521. Notice of Violation and Review.**

10 If the Director determines that a Purchaser has violated any provision of these
11 regulations, a Notice of Violation shall be sent by certified mail to Purchaser with the
12 further statement that Purchaser shall be prohibited from purchasing State Timber
13 for a period of 5 years from the date of violation and said notice will designate the
14 period of suspension of the timber operator permit, if any, not exceeding a period of 6
15 months from the date of notice. Within 30 days of said notice, Purchaser may make
16 written appeal to the Director for review. The Director, upon his or her option, may act
17 on the appeal either by open hearing or submission of written documents and proof. A
18 decision if the Director is final.

19
20 Note: Authority cited: Section 4656.1, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections
21 4645, 4651 and 4656.1, Public Resources Code.